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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOEILED

WESTERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA OCT 0 4 2016

CARMELITA REEDER SHINN, CLERK

IBJ.YS.‘IT‘IXT%RTAVE@N DI'ST - OKLA,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,

No.

...VS_

WAYNE BARNES, Violation: 18 U.S.C. § 242

Defendant.

' S S S et St St et '

INDICTMENT

The Federal Grand Jury charges that:

Introduction

At all times relevant to this Indictment:

1. The McClain County Jail in Purcell, Oklahoma, was a facility
responsible for the custody, control, care, and safety of inmates, including
pretrial detainees, who were being held in custody following arrest, but who
had not been convicted of a crime.

2. Defendant WAYNE BARNES was a ranking Lieutenant who

was employed as the Jail Administrator at the McClain County Jail.



3. As the Jail Administrator, BARNES was responsible for the
custody, control, care, and safety of inmates, including pretrial detainees, at
the McClain County Jail.

4. From June 16, 2013, through June 19, 2013, K.W. was a pretrial
detainee in the custody of the McClain County Jail.

By K.W. was a Type 1 diabetic who required regular medication,
including insulin.

6. While incarcerated at the McClain County Jail, KW. did not
receive the medication required for his Type 1 diabetes, he was not evaluated
or treated by a doctor, and he was not taken to a hospital for evaluation or
treatment until the afternoon of June 19, 2013.

T. On dJune 19, 2013, at approximately 3:30 p.m., BARNES
observed K.W. lying on the floor of his cell, unresponsive. For the first time,
BARNES directed a corrections officer to call emergency medical services.
When emergency medical personnel arrived at the McClain County dJail,
K.W.s pupils were fixed and dilated.

8. K.W. never regained consciousness and died at a hospital on June

21, 2013.



COUNT 1
(Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law)

9. The Federal Grand Jury incorporates paragraphs 1-8 by
reference.

10.  Beginning on or about June 17, 2013, and continuing through on
or about June 19, 2013, in the Western District of Oklahoma, defendant
WAYNE BARNES, while acting under color of law, as the Jail Administrator
of the McClain County Jail, willfully deprived K.W. of the right to due process
of law, which is protected and secured by the Constitution and the laws of the
United States, and which includes the right of a pretrial detainee to be free
from a corrections officer’s deliberate indifference to his serious medical
needs. Specifically, BARNES, knowing that K\W. had a serious medical
condition, willfully failed to provide K.W. with necessary medical care,
thereby acting with deliberate indifference to a substantial risk of serious

harm to K.W. The offense resulted in bodily injury to, and the death of, KW.



All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 242.

A TRUE BILL:

Lo 2 122

REPERSON OF THE GRAND JURY

MARK A. YANCEY
United States Attorney

O(L.LQJ.OL e 8CUUL@/
JULIA E. BARRY
Assistant U.S. Attorney

(u

KRISTY PARKER
Trial Attorney, Civil Rights Division
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

WESTERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
Plaintiff, ;
-Vs- ; No. CR-16-185-F
WAYNE BARNES, ;
Defendant. ;
PLEA AGREEMENT
Introduction
Ly This document, in conjunction with a Supplement filed

contemporaneously under seal, contains the entire plea agreement between defendant,
Wayne Barnes, and the United States through its undersigned attorney. No other agreement
or promise exists, nor may any additional agreement be entered into unless in writing and
signed by all parties. Any unilateral modification of this agreement is hereby rejected by
the United States. This agreement applies only to the criminal violations described and
does not apply to any civil matter or any civil forfeiture proceeding except as specifically
set forth. This agreement binds only the United States Attorney’s Office of the Western
District of Oklahoma and does not bind any other federal, state, or local prosecuting,
administrative, or regulatory authority. If defendant does not accept the terms of this

agreement by January 20, 2017, the offer is withdrawn.

e
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Guilty Plea

2 Defendant agrees to enter a plea of guilty to Count 1 in Case Number
CR-16-185-F charging Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law, in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 242. To be found guilty of violating 18 U.S.C. § 242, as
charged in the Indictment, defendant must admit that:

(1) he acted under color of law;

(2) he deprived K.W. of a right secured or protected by the Constitution or
laws of the United States;

(3) he acted willfully; and,

(4) bodily injury or death resulted.

Maximum Penalty, Restitution and Special Assessments

3 The maximum penalty that could be imposed as a result of this plea is
a term of imprisonment of any term of years or life, or a fine of $250,000.00, or both such
fine and imprisonment, as well as a mandatory special assessment of $100.00, and a term
of supervised release of five years.

In addition to the punishment described above, a plea of guilty can affect
immigration status. If defendant is not a citizen of the United States, a guilty plea may
result in deportation and removal from the United States, may prevent him from ever
lawfully reentering or remaining in the United States, and may result in the denial of

naturalization.



Case 5:16-cr-00185-F Document 21 Filed 02/09/17 Page 3 of 10

4. In addition, the Court must order the payment of restitution to any
victim(s) of the offense. Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3663(a)(3) and 3663 A, the parties further
agree that, as part of the sentence resulting from defendant’s plea, the Court will enter an
order of restitution to all victims of defendant’s relevant conduct as determined by
reference to the United States Sentencing Guidelines.

5. Defendant agrees to pay the special assessment due the United States
to the Office of the United States Court Clerk immediately following sentencing.
Defendant understands that any fine or restitution ordered by the Court is immediately due
unless the Court provides for payment on a date certain or in installments.

6. For certain statutory offenses, the Court must also impose a term of
supervised release, which defendant will begin to serve after being released from custody.
For all other offenses, the Court may impose a term of supervised release to be served
following release from custody. During the term of supervised release, defendant will be
subject to conditions that will include prohibitions against violating local, state, or federal
law, reporting requirements, restrictions on travel and residence, and possible testing for
controlled substance use. If defendant violates the conditions of his supervised release, the
Court may revoke his supervised release and sentence him to an additional term of
imprisonment. This additional term of imprisonment would be served without credit for
the time defendant successfully spent on supervised release. When combined, the original
term of imprisonment and any subsequent term of imprisonment the Court imposes may

exceed the statutory maximum prison term allowable for the offense.
3



Case 5:16-cr-00185-F Document 21 Filed 02/09/17 Page 4 of 10

Sentencing Guidelines

T The parties enter this agreement under Federal Rule of Criminal
Procedure 11(c)(1)(C). The parties agree that a sentence within the range of 0 to 51
months of incarceration is the appropriate disposition of this case. The parties
understand that the Court may accept or reject this Rule 11(c)(1)(C) plea or may defer its
decision as to acceptance or rejection until it has had an opportunity to consider the
presentence investigation report, as provided in Rule 11(¢c)(3)(A). If the defendant does
not receive a sentence within the range of 0 to 51 months of incarceration, the
defendant or the government can declare this agreement null and void.

The parties acknowledge that 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a) directs the Court to
consider certain factors in imposing sentence, including the Sentencing Guidelines
promulgated by the United States Sentencing Commission. Consequently, although the
parties recognize that the Sentencing Guidelines are only advisory, they have entered into
certain stipulations and agreements with respect to the Guidelines. Based upon the
information known to the parties on the date this agreement is executed, they expect to
take, but are not limited to, the following positions at sentencing:

The parties agree defendant should receive a 2-level downward adjustment
for acceptance of responsibility pursuant to USSG § 3E1.1(a), if he commits no further
crimes, does not falsely deny or frivolously contest relevant conduct, and fully complies
with all of the other terms of this agreement. Further, to the extent the Court finds

defendant qualifies for that 2-level downward adjustment and USSG § 3EL.1(b) is
4
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applicable, the government agrees to move for the additional 1-level downward adjustment
of § 3E1.1(b), if defendant accepts the terms of this plea agreement by the deadline
established in Paragraph 1.

Apart from any expressed agreements and stipulations, the parties reserve the
right to advocate for, and present evidence relevant to, other Guideline adjustments and
sentencing factors for consideration by the U.S. Probation Office and the Court.

Upon defendant’s signing of this plea agreement, the United States intends
to end its investigation of the allegations in the Indictment as to defendant, except insofar
as required to prepare for further hearings in this case, including but not limited to
sentencing, and to prosecute others, if any, involved in defendant’s conduct. The United
States agrees to end any investigation directed specifically at the foregoing stipulations,
agreements, or recommendations as to defendant. However, subject to the terms and
conditions of this plea agreement (particularly the Plea Supplement), the United States
expressly reserves the right to take positions that deviate from the foregoing stipulations,
agreements, or recommendations in the event that material credible evidence requiring
such a deviation is discovered during the course of its investigation subsequent to the
signing of this agreement or arises from sources independent of the United States, including
the U.S. Probation Office.

Waiver of Right to Appeal and Bring Collateral Challenge

8. Defendant understands that the Court will consider those factors in 18

U.S.C. §3553(a) in determining his sentence. Defendant further understands that 28
3
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U.S.C. § 1291 and 18 U.S.C. § 3742 give him the right to appeal the judgment and sentence
imposed by the Court. Acknowledging all this, and in exchange for the promises and
concessions made by the United States in this plea agreement, defendant knowingly and
voluntarily waives the following rights:

a. Defendant waives his right to appeal his guilty plea, and any
other aspect of his conviction, including but not limited to any rulings on pretrial
suppression motions or any other pretrial dispositions of motions and issues;

b. If the defendant receives a sentence within the range of 0 to
51 months of incarceration, he waives his right to appeal his sentence, including any
restitution, and the manner in which the sentence is determined;

c. Defendant waives his right to collaterally challenge or move to
modify (under 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. §3582(c)(2), or any other ground) his
conviction or sentence, including any restitution, except with respect to claims of
ineffective assistance of counsel.

9. If the defendant receives a sentence within the range of 0 to 51
months of incarceration, the United States agrees to waive its right under 18 U.S.C. §
3742 to appeal the sentence imposed by the Court and the manner in which the sentence
was determined.

Waiver of Claim to Prevailing Party Status

10.  Defendant expressly acknowledges that he is not a “prevailing party”

within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 3006A with respect to the count of conviction or any
6
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other count or charge that may be dismissed pursuant to this agreement. If defendant is
represented by retained counsel, he voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives any
rights he may have to seek reasonable attorney’s fees and other litigation expenses under
18 U.S.C. § 3006A.

Waiver of FOIA and Privacy Act Rights

11. Defendant waives all rights, whether asserted directly or by a
representative, to request of or receive from any department or agency of the United States
any records pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case, including but not
limited to records that defendant may seek under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C.
§ 552, or the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 522a.

Obligations of Defendant

12.  Defendant shall commit no further crimes. It is understood that
should defendant commit any further crimes or should it be determined that he has
knowingly given false, incomplete, or misleading testimony or information, or should he
otherwise violate any provision of this agreement, the United States may declare this
agreement null and void and prosecute defendant for any and all his federal criminal
violations, including perjury and obstruction of justice. Any prosecution within the scope
of this investigation that is not time-barred by the applicable statute of limitations on the
date of the signing of this agreement may be brought against defendant, notwithstanding
the expiration of the statute of limitations between the signing of this agreement and the

commencement of that prosecution. Defendant hereby waives all defenses based on the
7
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statute of limitations with respect to any prosecution that is not time-barred on the date that
this agreement is signed.

13.  The parties also recognize that if the Court determines defendant has
violated any provision of this agreement or authorizes defendant to withdraw from his
knowing and voluntary guilty plea entered pursuant to this agreement: (a) all written or
oral statements made by defendant to the Court or to federal or other designated law
enforcement agents, any testimony given by defendant before a grand jury or other tribunal,
whether before or after the signing of this agreement, and any leads from those statements
or testimony, shall be admissible in evidence in any criminal proceeding brought against
defendant; and (b) defendant shall assert no claim under the United States Constitution,
any statute, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f), Federal Rule of Evidence 410, or
any other federal rule or law that those statements or any leads from those statements
should be suppressed. Defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives the rights described
in this paragraph as of the time he signs this agreement.

The Obligations of the United States

14.  If defendant enters a plea of guilty as described above and fully meets
all obligations under this agreement, he will not be further prosecuted by the United States
Attorney’s Office for the Western District of Oklahoma for any crimes related to his
involvement in the death of K.W. at the McClain County Jail. This agreement does not

provide any protection against prosecution for any crime not specifically described above.
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15.  The United States reserves the right to inform the Probation Office
and the Court of the nature and extent of defendant’s activities with respect to this case and

all other activities of defendant which the United States deems relevant to sentencing.
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Signatures

16. By signing this agreement, defendant acknowledges that he has
discussed its terms with his attorney and understands and accepts those terms. Further,
defendant acknowledges that this document, in conjunction with the Plea Supplement filed
contemporaneously under seal, contains the only terms of the agreement concerning his
plea of guilty in this case, and that there are no other deals, bargains, agreements, or

understandings which modify or alter these terms.

Dated this 277 day of :)_Ouhmr'{? ,2017.

MARK A. YANCEY

APPROVED: United States Attorney

_C&%@' _A__:L_L'A n <, 'tf*:_("‘v A
CHRIS M. STEPHENS JULIA E. BARRY v :f
Deputy Chief, Criminal Division Assistant U.S. Attorney |/

Western District of Oklahoma
210 Park Avenue, Ste. 400
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
(405) 553-8753 (Office)

(405) 553-8888 (Fax)

KRISTY PARKER
Deputy Chief, Civil Rights Division

TR (- QM Mf"’rg

WAYNE BARNES ROBERT L. WYATT
Attorney for Defendant

10
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AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case

Sheet 1
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
WESTERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
V. Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F
WAYNE BARNES USM Number: 31482-064
Robert L. Wyatt, IV
Defendant's Attorney
THE DEFENDANT:
pleaded guilty to count 1

1 pleaded nolo contendere to count(s)

which was accepted by the court.

1 was found guilty on count(s)

after a plea of not guilty.

The defendant is adjudicated guilty of these offenses:

Offense
Title & Section Nature of Offense Ended Count
18:242 Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law 6-19-13 1

The defendant is sentenced as provided in pages 2 through _7 _ of this judgment. The sentence is imposed
pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984.

0 The defendant has been found not guilty on count(s)

O Count(s) (is)(are) dismissed on the motion of the United States.

IT IS ORDERED that the defendant must notify the United States attorney for this district within 30 days of any
change of name, residence, or mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments imposed
by this judgment are fully paid. If ordered to pay restitution, the defendant must notify the court and United States
attorney of material changes in economic circumstances.

August 9, 2017

Date of Imposition of Sentence

STEPHEN P. FRIOT *
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

August 10, 2017

Date Signed
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AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case

Sheet 2 - Imprisonment
Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _2 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant is hereby committed to the custody of the Federal Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a total term of:
51 months.

The court makes the following recommendations to the Bureau of Prisons:

That the defendant, if eligible, participate in the Inmate Financial Responsibility Program at a rate determined by
Bureau of Prisons staff in accordance with the requirements of the Inmate Financial Responsibility Program; and

That the defendant, if eligible, be incarcerated at FMC Fort Worth.
[ The defendant is remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal.

] The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this district:

[J at 12:00 noon on
[ as notified by the United States Marshal.

The defendant shall surrender for service of sentence at the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons:

X at 12:00 noon _on 9-14-17
L1 as notified by the United States Marshal.
[ as notified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office.

RETURN

| have executed this judgment as follows:

Defendant delivered on to

at , with a certified copy of this judgment.

United States Marshal

By

Deputy United States Marshal
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AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case
Sheet 3 - Supervised Release

Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _3 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, you will be on supervised release for a term of: 3 years.

MANDATORY CONDITIONS
1. You must not commit another federal, state, or local crime.
2. You must not unlawfully possess a controlled substance.

3. You must refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled substance. You must submit to one drug test within 15 days of
release from imprisonment and at least two periodic drug tests thereafter, as determined by the court.

1 The above drug testing condition is suspended, based on the court’s determination that you pose a low risk of
future substance abuse, but the court specifically retains the probation officer’s authority under 18 U.S.C. § 3603
to administer drug testing for cause as a suitable method for monitoring the defendant’s compliance with the
standard conditions of supervision prohibiting the use of controlled substances. (check if applicable)

4. You must cooperate in the collection of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (check if applicable)

5. O You must comply with the requirements of the Sex Offender Registration and Notification Act (42 U.S.C. § 16901,
et seq.) as directed by the probation officer, the Bureau of Prisons, or any state sex offender registration agency in
the location where you reside, work, are a student, or were convicted of a qualifying offense. (check if applicable)

6. [0 You must participate in an approved program for domestic violence. (check if applicable)

You must comply with the standard conditions that have been adopted by this court as well as with any additional conditions
on the attached pages.



Case 5:16-cr-00185-F Document 37 Filed 08/10/17 Page 4 of 7

AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case

Sheet 3A - Supervised Release

Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _4 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

As part of your supervised release, you must comply with the following standard conditions of supervision. These conditions
are imposed because they establish the basic expectations for your behavior while on supervision and identify the minimum
tools needed by probation officers to keep informed, report to the court about, and bring about improvements in your conduct
and condition.

1.

11.

12.

13.

You must report to the probation office in the federal judicial district where you are authorized to reside within 72 hours
of your release from imprisonment, unless the probation officer instructs you to report to a different probation office or
within a different time frame.

After initially reporting to the probation office, you will receive instructions from the court or the probation officer about
how and when you must report to the probation officer, and you must report to the probation officer as instructed.

You must not knowingly leave the federal judicial district where you are authorized to reside without first getting
permission from the court or the probation officer.

You must answer truthfully the questions asked by your probation officer.

You must live at a place approved by the probation officer. If you plan to change where you live or anything about your
living arrangements (such as the people you live with), you must notify the probation officer at least 10 days before the
change. If notifying the probation officer in advance is not possible due to unanticipated circumstances, you must notify
the probation officer within 72 hours of becoming aware of a change or expected change.

You must allow the probation officer to visit you at any time at your home or elsewhere, and you must permit the
probation officer to take any items prohibited by the conditions of your supervision that he or she observes in plain view.
You must work full time (at least 30 hours per week) at a lawful type of employment, unless the probation officer excuses
you from doing so. If you do not have full-time employment you must try to find full-time employment, unless the
probation officer excuses you from doing so. If you plan to change where you work or anything about your work (such
as your position or your job responsibilities), you must notify the probation officer at least 10 days before the change. If
notifying the probation officer at least 10 days in advance is not possible due to unanticipated circumstances, you must
notify the probation officer within 72 hours of becoming aware of a change or expected change.

You must not communicate or interact with someone you know is engaged in criminal activity. If you know someone
has been convicted of a felony, you must not knowingly communicate or interact with that person without first getting
the permission of the probation officer.

If you are arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer, you must notify the probation officer within 72 hours.

. You must not own, possess, or have access to a firearm, ammunition, destructive device, or dangerous weapon (i.e.,

anything that was designed, or was modified for, the specific purpose of causing bodily injury or death to another person
such as nunchakus or tasers).

You must not act or make any agreement with a law enforcement agency to act as a confidential human source or
informant without first getting the permission of the court.

If the probation officer determines that you pose a risk to another person (including an organization), the probation officer
may require you to notify the person about the risk and you must comply with that instruction. The probation officer may
contact the person and confirm that you have notified the person about the risk.

You must follow the instructions of the probation officer related to the conditions of supervision.

U.S. Probation Office Use Only

A U.S. probation officer has instructed me on the conditions specified by the court and has provided me with a written copy
of this judgment containing these conditions. For further information regarding these conditions, see Overview of Probation
and Supervised Release Conditions, available at: www.uscourts.gov.

Defendant’s Signature Date
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AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case
Sheet 3B - Supervised Release

Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _ 5 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

You must participate in a program of mental health aftercare at the direction of the probation officer. The court may order that

you contribute to the cost of services rendered (copayment) in an amount to be determined by the probation officer based on
your ability to pay.

You are ordered to complete 104 hours of community service during the first year of supervised release as directed by the
probation officer.

You must submit to a search of your person, property, electronic devices, or any automobile under your control to be conducted
in a reasonable manner and at a reasonable time, for the purpose of detecting firearms and/or ammunition at the direction of

the probation officer upon reasonable suspicion. Further, you must inform any residents that the premises may be subject to
search.



Case 5:16-cr-00185-F Document 37 Filed 08/10/17 Page 6 of 7

AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case
Sheet 5 - Criminal Monetary Penalties

Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _6 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES

The defendant must pay the total criminal monetary penalties under the schedule of payments on Sheet 6.

Assessment JVTA Assessment* Fine Restitution
TOTALS $100.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00
[0 The determination of restitution is deferred until . An Amended Judgment in a Criminal Case (AO 245C)

will be entered after such determination.

O The defendant must make restitution (including community restitution) payments to the U.S. Court Clerk, 200 N.W. 4%
Street, Oklahoma City, OK 73102, to be distributed to the payees in the amounts listed below.

If the defendant makes a partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately proportioned payment unless
specified otherwise in the priority order or percentage payment column below. However, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§3664(i), all nonfederal victims must be paid before the United States is paid.

O Individual names omitted. See list in Court Clerk’s Office.

Name of Payee Total Loss** Restitution Ordered Priority or Percentage
TOTALS $ $

O Restitution amount ordered pursuant to plea agreement $

The defendant must pay interest on restitution and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution or fine is paid in
full before the fifteenth day after the date of judgment, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f). All of the payment options on
Sheet 6 may be subject to penalties for delinquency and default, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(qg).

[0 The court determined that the defendant does not have the ability to pay interest, and it is ordered that:

[0 The interest requirement is waived for the O fine I restitution.
[0 The interest requirement for the [ fine [ restitution is modified as follows:

*Justice for Victims of Trafficking Act of 2015, Pub. L. No. 114-22.
**Findings for the total amount of losses are required under Chapters 109A, 110, 110A, and 113A of Title 18 for offenses
committed on or after September 13, 1994 but before April 23, 1996.
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AO 245B (Rev. 11/16) Judgment in a Criminal Case
Sheet 6 - Schedule of Payments

Defendant: BARNES, Wayne Judgment-Page _ 7 of 7
Case Number: CR-16-185-1-F

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
Having assessed the defendant’s ability to pay, payment of the total criminal monetary penalties is due as follows:

A Lump sum payment of $10,100.00 due immediately, balance due

0 not later than , or
in accordance with [0 C, [ D, 0O E,or F below; or

B [1 Paymentto beginimmediately (may be combined with [1 C, [1 D,or [J F below);or

C [ Paymentinequal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of $ over a period of (e.q.,
months or years), to commence (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after the date of this judgment; or

D [ Paymentinequal (e.g., weekly, monthly, quarterly) installments of $ over a period of (e.q.,
months or years), to commence (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release from imprisonment to a term of

supervision; or

E [0 Paymentduringthe term of supervised release will commence within (e.g., 30 or 60 days) after release
from imprisonment. The court will set the payment plan based on an assessment of the defendant’s ability to pay
at that time; or

F Special instructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penalties:

If the fine is not paid immediately, the defendant shall make payments of 10% of the defendant’s quarterly
earnings during the term of imprisonment.

After release from confinement, if the fine is not paid immediately, the defendant shall make payments of the
greater of $100.00 per month or 10% of defendant’s gross monthly income, as directed by the probation officer.
Payments are to commence not later than 30 days after release from confinement.

Unless the court has expressly ordered otherwise, if this judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal monetary
penalties is due during the period of imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made through
the Federal Bureau of Prisons’ Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, shall be paid through the United States Court Clerk
for the Western District of Oklahoma, 200 N.W. 4 Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102.

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties imposed.
[0 Joint and Several

Defendant and Co-Defendant Names and Case Numbers (including defendant number), Total Amount, Joint and
Several Amount, and corresponding payee, if appropriate.

The defendant shall pay the cost of prosecution.
The defendant shall pay the following court cost(s):

0o

[0 The defendant shall forfeit the defendant's interest in the following property to the United States:
All right, title, and interest in the assets listed in the Preliminary Order of Forfeiture dated (doc. no. ).
Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, (2) restitution principal, (3) restitution interest, (4) fine

principal, (5) fine interest, (6) community restitution, (7) JVTA assessment, (8) penalties, and (9) costs, including cost of
prosecution and court costs.
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General Information
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Federal Nature of Suit Criminal

Docket Number 5:16-cr-00185

Status CLOSED
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